

BYLAWS OF THE CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY

<u>ARTICLE I - THE AUTHORITY</u>

Section 1.1 Name. The official name of the Authority shall be the "California Community Choice Financing Authority."

Section 1.2 Board Members. The Authority shall be administered by a board of directors (the "Board") whose members (the "Directors") shall be as set forth in Article IV of the Joint Powers Agreement, dated June 25, 2021 (the "Agreement"). Directors shall, to the extent required by law, comply with the requirements of the California Political Reform Act, as amended from time to time, the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, as amended from time to time, and any other requirements applicable to members of the governing body of a joint powers authority.

Section 1.3 Office and Place of Meetings. The business office of the Authority shall be at 1125 Tamalpais Avenue, San Rafael, California 94901 or at such other place as may be designated by resolution by the Board. Regular meetings shall be held at 1125 Tamalpais Avenue, San Rafael, California 94901 or at such other place as the Board may designate.

<u>ARTICLE II - OFFICERS</u>

<u>Section 2.1 Officers</u>. The Officers of the Authority shall be the Chair, Vice Chair, Treasurer/Controller, and Secretary. The Officers of the Authority may also include a General Manager.

Section 2.2 Chair and Vice Chair. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Authority shall be elected by the Board. The term of office for the respective officers shall be from the date of his or her election as Chair or Vice Chair through the date of the first regular meeting of the Authority in the second succeeding calendar year following such election: provided, that each person shall serve until a successor has been duly elected. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Authority. If the Chair is absent, then the Vice Chair shall act in the Chair's place.

Section 2.3 General Manager. A General Manager may be appointed by the Board and may, but need not, be a Director. The General Manager shall submit such information and recommendations to the Board as he or she may consider proper concerning the business, policies and affairs of the Authority. Except as otherwise specified by resolution of the Board, the General Manager or the General Manager's designee shall have the power to sign all contracts, deeds and other instruments executed by the Authority, shall have the power to direct employees, borrowed or seconded staff and consultants in implementing policy set by the Board, and shall have the power to perform all duties incident to the office or delegated by the Board. The General Manager may designate one or more officers of the Authority or employees of the Authority to act as his or her designee in exercising the power and performing the duties of the General Manager.

Section 2.4 Secretary. The Secretary shall be appointed by the Board, and such Secretary may, but need not, be a Director. The Secretary shall keep the records of the Authority, shall act as Secretary of the meetings of the Authority and record all votes, and shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Authority in a journal of proceedings to be kept for such purpose, and shall perform all duties incident to the office.

Section 2.5 Treasurer/Controller. The Treasurer/Controller shall be appointed by the Board, and may, but need not, be a Director. The Treasurer/Controller shall perform the duties set forth in the Agreement. The Treasurer/Controller may submit such information and recommendations to the Board as he or she may consider proper concerning the business, policies and affairs of the Authority. The Treasurer/Controller shall be responsible for preparation and submission of any reports required to be provided to holders of the Authority's Bonds (as such term is defined in Section 1.05 of the Agreement) pursuant to any continuing disclosure undertakings entered into by the Authority. Except as otherwise specified by resolution of the Board, the Treasurer/Controller or the Treasurer/Controller's designee shall have the power to sign all contracts, deeds and other instruments executed by the Authority, shall have the power to direct employees, borrowed or seconded staff and consultants in implementing policy set by the Board,

and shall have the power to perform all duties incident to the office or delegated by the Board. The Treasurer/Controller may designate one or more officers of the Authority or employees of the Authority to act as his or her designee in exercising the power and performing the duties of the Treasurer/Controller.

Section 2.6 Election of Officers. Election of officers shall be the first order of business at the first regular meeting of the Authority held in every second calendar year; provided, that failure to elect any or all officers at such meeting shall not affect the title to office of any officer duly elected and then holding office as of such meeting.

Section 2.7 Authority to Bind Authority. No Director, officer, agent or employee of the Authority, without prior specific or general authority by a vote of the Board, shall have any power or authority to bind the Authority by any contract, to pledge its credit, or to render it liable for any purpose in any amount.

<u>ARTICLE III - MEETINGS</u>

Section 3.1 Regular Meetings. The Board shall hold at least one regular meeting each year, and, by resolution, may provide for the holding of regular meetings at more frequent intervals in accordance with the provisions of Section 54956 of the Government Code of the State of California. Regular meetings shall be held as set forth in Section 1.3, on dates and at times as fixed by resolution of the Authority and at such places as are determined by the Board. If at any time any regular meeting falls on a legal holiday, such regular meeting shall be held on the next business day at the same time.

All meetings of the Board shall be called, noticed, held and conducted subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 of Part I of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (Sections 54950-54961)), as supplemented and amended, or any successor legislation hereafter enacted, and other applicable law.

The Secretary of the Authority shall cause minutes of all meetings of the Board, both special and regular, to be kept and shall cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded promptly to each Director.

<u>Section 3.2 Special Meetings</u>. A special meeting may be called in accordance with the provisions of Sections 54956 and 54956.5 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended.

<u>Section 3.3 Closed Sessions</u>. Nothing contained in these Bylaws shall be construed to prevent the Board from holding closed sessions during a regular or special meeting concerning any matter permitted by law to be considered in a closed session.

<u>Section 3.4 Public Hearings</u>. All public hearings held by the Board shall be held during regular or special meetings of the Board.

Section 3.5 Adjourning Meetings and Continuing Public Hearings to Other Times or Places. Any public hearing being held, or any hearing noticed or ordered to be held at any meeting, may by order or notice of continuance be continued or re-continued to any subsequent meeting in the same manner and to the same extent set forth herein for the adjournment of the meetings: provided, that if the hearing is continued to a time less than 24 hours after the time specified in the order or notice of hearing a copy of the order or notice of continuance shall be posted immediately following the meeting at which the order or declaration of continuance was adopted or made.

Section 3.6 Meetings to be Open and Public. All meetings of Directors to take action or to deliberate concerning Authority business and its conduct shall be open and public and all persons shall be permitted to attend any such meetings, except as otherwise provided or permitted by law, including as permitted by Section 3.3 of these Bylaws.

Section 3.7 Quorum, Voting Requirements, and Manner of Action. A quorum of the Board, the minimum voting thresholds for actions of the Board, and the manner in which the Board may act shall be as set forth in Article V of the Agreement.

<u>Section 3.8 Parliamentary Procedure</u>. The rules of parliamentary procedure set forth in Robert's Rules of Order shall govern all meetings of the Authority, except as otherwise herein provided.

ARTICLE IV - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 4.1 Statements of Economic Interest. Each Director shall comply with the Authority's Conflict of Interest Code, fully respond to all requests from Authority staff in regard to conflict of interest issues that may arise and timely submit all applicable forms, including Statements of Economic Interest (Form 700), Assuming, Annual, and Leaving Office Statements with the Secretary. The Secretary shall make and retain copies of these forms in compliance with applicable law and the Authority's Conflict of Interest Code.

<u>Section 4.2 No Reimbursement for Travel Expenses.</u> Directors, officers, and employees shall not be reimbursed by the Authority for any travel expenses incurred by those persons in attending events, meetings, and conferences on behalf of the Authority. Non-reimbursable travel expenses shall include all charges for meals, lodging, airfare, and costs of travel by automobile.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may vote to permit reimbursement of any such reasonable and necessary travel expenses incurred for Directors, officers, or employees to attend non-Authority events, meetings, and conferences, only if that person's sole purpose is to attend on behalf of the Authority. "Reasonable and necessary" travel expenses, with respect to any Director, shall be only those expenses which the Director would not have incurred in performing the normal business of the Founding Member (as defined in Section 1.08 of the Agreement) that appointed such Director. The Treasurer/Controller, upon approval of the Board, shall be authorized to pay all such expenses deemed reasonable and necessary so long as sufficient funds have been budgeted therefor.

Section 4.3 Bonds and Other Indebtedness. The Authority may issue or incur Bonds (as such term is defined in Section 1.05 of the Agreement) in accordance with Article VII of the Agreement, and such Bonds shall not constitute general obligations of the Authority or a debt, liability or obligation of any of the Members (as such term is defined in Section 1.10 of the Agreement), but shall be payable solely from the moneys pledged to the payment of principal of or interest on such Bonds under the terms of the resolution, indenture, trust agreement or other instrument pursuant to which the Bonds are issued or incurred.

<u>ARTICLE V</u> - <u>AMENDMENTS</u>

<u>Section 5.1 Amendments to Bylaws</u>. These Bylaws may be amended by the Authority at any regular or special meeting by majority vote of the Board, <u>provided</u>, that the proposed amendment to any particular section is included in the notice of such meeting.